
 
 
 

Scrutiny Programme Board 
 

Date: Tuesday, 26 October 2010 
Time: 
 

6.15 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Mark Delap 
Tel: 0151 691 8500 
e-mail: markdelap@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF 

INTEREST/PARTY WHIP  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
 
Members are reminded that they should also declare, pursuant to 
paragraph 18 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, whether 
they are subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be 
considered and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2010. 

 
3. SCRUTINY WORKSHOP UPDATE (Pages 7 - 8) 
 
4. SCRUTINY TRAINING (Pages 9 - 36) 
 
 Further to minute 21 (20 September 2010), the Director of Law, HR 

and Asset Management will report that the Member Training Steering 
Group has agreed that training for all Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Members is a priority and that Dr Stephanie Snape, 
Research Director of the English Regions Network Research & 
Development Programme at the Institute of Governance & Public 
Management, University of Warwick, should be commissioned to 
provide it. Dr Snape had provided Wirral with training a few years ago 

Public Document Pack



and refresher training is seen as best practice. 
 
However, at the Informal Overview and Scrutiny Workshop (agenda 
item 3 refers), Members considered the proposed training 
arrangement. In the light of comments received, guidance is sought on 
how to proceed. 
 

5. FORWARD PLAN  
 
 The Forward Plan for the period November 2010 to February 2011 has 

been published on the Council’s intranet/website. Members are invited 
to review the Plan prior to the meeting in order for the Scrutiny 
Programme Board to consider, having regard to the work programme, 
whether scrutiny should take place of any items contained within the 
Plan and, if so, how it could be done within relevant timescales and 
resources. 
 

6. WORK PROGRAMMES OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEES (Pages 37 - 50) 

 
 • Council Excellence (attached) 

• Children and Young People (to be circulated separately) 

• Economy and Regeneration (to be circulated separately) 

• Health and Well Being (to be circulated separately) 

• Sustainable Communities (attached) 
 

7. REVIEW OF SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD WORK 
PROGRAMME (Pages 51 - 58) 

 
8. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR  
 
 
 



��������	
�������	����	
�

��������	
����������	
�
�
�

��������� ����������� ����������������

�
� ������������ ���������

�����������
�� ����
�

��!�"����
����#��$�����
������������
�

�
!�������� ������������ #�%�&�������'��������(�)�������

 �����������'��������(���*�������
�

�
�

�+� ��������	����	��	�������	�	����������	��	���������
���	���
		
�
��������&������,���������������&�����������������������������-�������� ����������
��������������&�������� ����������� ������$���������� �(����� ����������� ���������������
&���������&���.�
�
��������&����������������������������������������������������������$�����/��(�
����0"��"��&������������������������%������&������� �����&���� ���-���� ��� �� �����
&�����������������&���������������������������������������(�����������������������������
������������(�����&����$������$�����.�
�
����������� ���� �� ������� ��������� ���� �������� ��������� ��� �$����� ����� 1� � ��,�
���$��������(�0"��"��&��������������������������������������	2����������(������
������������������&��,��(������������������3���$�������04����������������"�������(�
�������$����5������������&�����������������������3���$������5��!��������.�
�

�/� �������		
�
��������	�	 � !"	 " �	#$%&"��	�'	 " �	#��"$%(�	 ���	�%	 )	 *&%�	!%�	+,	&(&�"	
-.+./	0�	!112����3	
�

�1� ��������	4�����������	��	��������		
�
*��� !�������� �(� #�&�� �%� ���� 6����� ����$������ ��������� �� ������� &�����
��$���$����� ���� ������������������������� ����"��$� �������������������� ���������
����� �$����� ��� ���� ��������� ���$������ 7����� (����&��$� ���� 	

/8	

1�
9������������.������������������������(�����������������������������"�������������
�(���$��������������������	

1.�
�
*���!�������5������������������������������������(�����������������������������"���
��� ���� 	

18	
�
� 9�������������� &����� ���� ����� ����������� ��� ���� �������� �(� ����
�������� �����$� 6���8���� 	
�
.� '�� &��� ������ ����� �������� ���� ��"�� �����
�����$���$��������������������"���&��������������������������������"�����������������
���� ����������$� �������� ��� ��.� �������� &���� �����(���� ��9������� ��� ��"��&� ����
����������(�������(�����9���������������(�����������"���&��,�&����������,���(���
	
�
8	
��.�
�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Page 1



6� ������� �(� ������� ���� ����� ������� ��� ������ ����� ���� ��������� ��� ����
9��������������������&�����$$���������������������������$������7���������&�������
��(��������&�������-�������(�������������������9��������������������&������������(����
&������������������$������.�
�
*��� ���������  ��,���� ����� ��� �� ��������� 	
�
� ����� ������� 	
� ����� $�"��
�������� (������� ���������� ��� �������� �������� ������� ���� ���� "��&�� �(� ����7�����
&�������$������ ���&����������"��$� ��$�����(� ���� ��������� ��� ����9�������������� ���
&�����������������������(����&��$�������(���(�������&��,�:��
�

•� '���"��������$�$�������(���������&������������������������

•� %�"��&���������������(�������(������������5�����������������9�������������

•� *����������������(�������������������$�

•� *�������������������������(�����(�����������������$������7�����

•� %�"��&��(�����;����<'�5�����������������$�������������$����������

•� %�"��&����������(�����=��&��������������������������������

•� >������$��$� ����� �������� ��� ���������� ��� &��,��$� $����� �������,��$� ;��<
����5���"��&��

•� ���������������$$��������(����������������"���������������������$����?.+��(�
���������.�

�
�������� ����������� ���� �������� �(� ��������� ��� ���� ���"��� ���� ��(������ ���
��$���$� ������������ ���&���� ���� ������ ��������� ����� #�������� ����(������� ���
��������� ��� 0"��"��&� ���� ��������� ������ �����$������.� �������� �@������� ����
"��&� ����� ��� (�������������� ���������� ��,��������� �������������(� ������������������
&����,��&�.�
�
��������	 �	 � !"	 " �	 2�1�2"	 0�	 %�"��	 !%�	 " !"	 %�	 '&2" �2	 !5"$�%	 0�	 "!6�%	 $%	
2��!"$�%	 "�	 $#12��$%(	 " �	 �52&"$%7	 '&%5"$�%	 &%"$�	 " �	 �&"5�#�	 �'	 " �	
���$0�2!"$�%�	 07	 �2�&1	 ��!��2�	 $�	 6%�8%	 !%�	 " �	#!""�2	 5�%�$��2��	 07	 " �	
!112�12$!"�	��##$""��3	
�

	
� ��������	���9���
	�
���		
�
*���!���������� ���"���������$��� ��(������ ��� ���� ��(������0"��"��&� ���� ���������
 ��,���������������,����������������������	
�
���������,�����������(���������
����������.� *��� ���� �(� ���� &��,���� ���� ����� ��� ��"���� ��� 6������ ����� (���
�����$������$���������"��$������������5��0"��"��&��������������(�������������������
����������������������&���������������$���(��������#�6����(����������	

1������
���������������(��������	

1�6�������������(����������������������"��.�'����"��������
����������(��������������������������������������������������(��������&��,����
��������� �� ������� ������������$� �(� ���� ����� �(� ���������� �� ��$$������ "������ �(� ����
���,� ���� (���� �(� ��� �@�������� 0"��"��&� ���� ��������� (�������� ���� ���� �����"���
��������������.�
�
*���������������������������������������$��(����� ��,������������������$���(���
2�0������� 	
�
� ��� ��������� ������������ ������� �������� ������� (��� �����$������$�
���� 0"��"��&� ���� ��������� (�������� ���� ��� ���&� �� ��� 6������ ����.� ��&�"���� ���
��(������������(������$�"��&�����������������@�������������������������������������
&��,���������������������������$�������"��&���(�����7����.�
�
�
�

Page 2



��������	�		
	

:+;	 � !"	" �	&1�!"�	2�1�2"	�%	" �	$%'�2#!�	8�26� �1	0�	%�"��3	
	

:-;	 � !"	" �	��5�%�	#��"$%(	�'	" �	8�26� �1	�%	<	�5"�0�2	-.+.	5�##�%5�	
!"	<3..1#	!%�	" !"	!��	!""�%����	0�	!��$���	!55�2�$%(�73	

�
	�� ��������	�������		

�
*��� !���������� ���"����� ����$��� �������� ����� ���� �������� *������$� �������$�
����������$����������(�������0"��"��&���������������������$�������������"��������
������������ ��"��"��� ��� ���� ��������� (�������.�*��� �������$�&����� ��� ��"����� ��� ��
������(�A/	?�������(���������������������(� ��&��,�7��������������.���������
�������"�����&�������������(�����&��,��������,����������(�����0"��"��&��������������
 ��,���� ���� &����� ��� ��"����� &���� ���� ���������� 6������ ����� (���� ���� �������
������$� ��������������2�0�������	
�
.�7������������������������(� ��������������
�����������$�&�������������������������$��.�
�
��������	 �	 � !"	 " �	 2�1�2"	 0�	 %�"��	 !%�	 ��#0�2�	 0�	 !��$���	 �'	 " �	
!22!%(�#�%"�	'�2	" �	"2!$%$%(	!"	" �	�!2�$��"	�11�2"&%$"73	
�

		� ������	���������	���	��������		
�
*��� !�������� �(� #�&�� �%� ���� 6����� ����$������ ���������� ���� ������� (��� �������
��������� ��(���� ������� 7���(��$� B���� ;=������ �������$��� (��� ��������5�� &����� &���
��������� ��� ��"���� ��(��������� �������� ��� ���� ��"�������� �(� ��"�������� ������
������� ������ ��������������� ���� �����������.� *��� 7���(��$� B���� ��(������ ��� ����
��"�����$� ������ �$����� �(� ���� ���������� $�"�������� ���� ��������� ������ ��������
�����������������$���������������������������������������������� ���������C�����������
�(������66C�����<���������$����$8�������������$����$C�(���������������,����������
#������������!����������������7���.�
�
*��� ����� ��������� ���� ��$��(������ �������$�� (��� ��������� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���������
�������������� ����� ��������� ������ ��,��� ������������ ��� ���� ������� �(� �������� ���
��������<��,��$���������(��(�����������.�
�
*����������(� ��������������� ����7���$�0"��"��&��������������������������(������
����(������� ��� ���� �������  ����� ������ &����� ���������� ����� �������� ����� *������
���*�������������$����������6��������������6���&�����������������.���������������
�����������$�����������(�������������������@�����$����������������������������&����
&��������$������������������� ����������������������� ����!����������(��������
���� ���������� �� ���������� ����� (��� ���� ������� ���� ���� 7���$� 04�� ���������� ���
�������$�������������������������(�������.�
�
��������	�	� !"	" �	5�%"�%"	�'	" �	�2$�'$%(	��"�	0�	%�"��3	
�

	D� ���	������	���	��������		
�
*��� !�������� �(� #�&�� �%� ���� 6����� ����$������ ���������� �� ����(��$� ����� ;*���
=������(�����������5�(���������������(���������������������(�����&�������(�������������
��$��(������ �������� ��� (���� �((���������� ���� ����� ��"��$�� ��� ���� ������ �(� ���� ������
������.�*����&�������$�(����������������,������ ��� ������$�"���������&���������������
������� ����������(����� ��������"�����&���������$�&������$��(������ ����������� ��� (�����$�
(��������������.�*�������(��$��������(������ ��� ������������&��,������ �������������

Page 3



&�����������$���������������� �������*�������������$�������&��������������������
(�����$�������������(���������������((������&�����(�&��,��$���������������.�*�������
��������������������&�����&����������������(���������������������,��$�����������������
�������������������������������������������@������"�����(��������.�
�
*��� ����(��$� ���������� ����� ��������� ������� ��� ��� �������"�� ��� ����$�� ����
���������� ����� ���� *����� ������ ��$������� ���� ����� ��� ������������ "����� (���
������ ���� �� �������� ��� ������ ������ ���� ���� ��� ������ ��� ���� (������ �(� ��������.� '��
���������� ����� ������ &����� ��� �� ����� (��� ����� ���$������ ������� ��"��&�� ���� ���,�
$����� ���,��$� ��� ����(��� �������� ���� ����� �� ����� ��� ������ �������������&���� ������
�������������������������������&����&����-������������������������������,��.�
�
��������	�	� !"	" �	5�%"�%"	�'	" �	02$�'$%(	1!1�2	0�	%�"��3	
�

	?� ����	��������	����		
�
*���!�������� �(� #�&�� �%� ���� 6���������$������ �������� ���� ���� ������� �����
��������� 6&������ &����� ���� ��������� ����� ��������� ��� ���� ������� (��� �������
�����������(���������&�������"������@�������(�������������� �����������������"���
�������������������.������"���������@����������(���������$��������������&���������
���������� �����������$�� �����&�����&�������������� (�"���(� ���������5��&������� ������(�
��������$�������&����$��$�����������$��������(� �����.�
�
�������� ��(������ ��� ���� ������������ ������� �(� ��������� ����$� �������,��� ��� ������
�����@�����������"��&���������������"��������������������������(���������������(���
�����������(���������������������6&�����	
��.�
�
��������	 �	 � !"	 " �	 �''$5�2�	 0�	 2�=&��"��	 "�	 12���%"	 !	 2�1�2"/	  $( �$( "$%(	
�>!#1���	 �'	 �>5����%"	 �52&"$%7/	 "�	 !	 '&"&2�	#��"$%(	 �'	 " �	 ��!2�/	 $%	 "$#�	 "�	
12�1!2�	!	�&0#$��$�%	'�2	" �	-.++	�'
�	8!2��3	
�

	2� ���9	
��������	��	�?��?���	��	��������	����������		
�
�������������"������������������$�����&��,���$��������(�����(����&��$�0"��"��&�
�������������������������&���������������������������(���&��������������������&���
����$� ������ &����� ��������� ��� ��$����� ���� ���������� ����������� (��� &��,� ��� ���
�������.�:��
�
���� �������������3���$�������
���� ��������>@���������
���� >�����������%�$����������
���� ����������� ����7���$�
���� ������������������������
�
E������&���� ����������� (����������� ��(��������� (����&��$� �������������$�� �(� ����
�������������3���$��������>�����������%�$������������������������� ����7���$�
0"��"��&������������������������.�
�
��������	�	� !"	" �	2�1�2"�	0�	%�"��3	
�

	F� ��?���	��	��������	
�������	����	���9	
�������		
�
*��� ������ ��������� ��� ������� ���������$� %����� ��� ���� �����������  ��,�
���$�������������������$�"�����������������������������"��&�������������,�(�����&�

Page 4



�����������������.�*���!�������������"���������$�����(���������������$��(������&��,�
�������,�����������(�����6����������������%�"��&�������$$��������������������(����
�����������(�������������� ��� �����(�����������������6&�����	
���������������	?�
�����.�������������$�������"��&���(�����������������������������������(��������������
�(�(������������������"��&�.�
�
��������	�		
	

:+;	 � !"	 " �	�5� ��	�52&"$%7	���$�8	'�2#	" �	0!�$�	�'	!	�&0#$��$�%	"�	 " �	
�'
�	����	�52&"$%7	8!2��	-.++3	

	

:-;	 � !"	 !��$"$�%!�	 "�1$5�	 '�2	 2��$�8	 0�	 5�%�$��2��	 !"	 " �	 ���2�$�8	 !%�	
�52&"$%7	��26� �1	"�	0�	 ���	�%	<	�5"�0�2	-.+.3	

�
	+� ������	
��		

�
*���!���������(�#�&���%�����6���������$�����������������������=��&���������(���
���� ������ 0������� 	
�
� :� )������� 	
��� &��� ��������� ��� ���� �������5��
��������8&������.��������������������"����������"��&����������������������������$����
������ (��� ���� ��������� ���$������ 7����� ��� ���������� ��"��$� ��$���� ��� ���� &��,�
��$������� &������� ��������� ������� ��,�� ����� �(� ���� ������ ���������� &������ ����
�����������(�������&������������������&����������"����������������������������.�
�
��������	�	� !"	" �	2�1�2"	0�	%�"��3	
�

	/� ��	 �����	 ������	 ��������	 

��?��	 ��	 ���	 ����	 �	
�����������	��9	������		
�
6�����������(���$��������������������������(�������������(����*��,�=�������&���������
������������������������������������(���������$�������������������������&������"��&�
��� �����"��$� ���$������ ��"��$�.� ��� ������� ����� ���� ��������� ���$������ 7�����
������������"��������������"��"��&������������������,$����������������,�(�����������
������(���������������������������������������������&���(����&��������������������
���� ���������� �(� ���� *��,� =����� ��������� ��$������ &���� ���� ��$������ ���
�������������(����������������������"�������������������*��,�=������������.�
�
���������@�����������"��&������������������������������(����������(������������
(����� &������ ������ ������ ��� ��� ��9������� ��� ���� ����"���� 0"��"��&� ���� ���������
����������.�
�
��������	 �	 � !"	 " �	#!""�2�	 2�'�22��	 "�	 07	 " �	 � !$2	 $%	 2��!"$�%	 "�	 " �	 �!�6	
��25��	0�	2�'�22��	 "�	�!5 	�'	 " �	 " �#��	���2�$�8	!%�	�52&"$%7	��##$""���	
!%�	" �7	0�	2�=&��"��	"�	���6	$%'�2#!"$�%	$%	2��!"$�%	"�	" ���	$��&��	8 $5 	'!��	
8$" $%	" �$2	2�#$"3	
�
�
� � �

�

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Update Note – Overview & Scrutiny Workshop 
 

5th October  2010 
 

Aim – The aim of the second Workshop was to develop an Action Plan for 
strengthening and improving the Overview & Scrutiny function in Wirral Council 
and to gain a better understanding of future training and future review topics for 
the Scrutiny Programme Board. 
 
 
Background – The first workshop explored the current approach to Overview & 
scrutiny at Wirral Council and came to the conclusion that it would be useful to 
consider good practice from other Authorities. 
 
Workshop Approach  
The Workshop provided an opportunity for the exploration of practice from other 
Authorities. Information from three Authorities was presented (Blackpool, 
Hartlepool and Hertfordshire) and thoughts about the approach taken and any 
interesting practice were discussed. 
 
 
Outcomes – What was achieved at the end of the Session 

1. A suggestion that the Overview and Scrutiny undertaken at Wirral Council 
should be more widely promoted. 

2. A suggestion that a leaflet/booklet detailing success stories could be 
produced. 

3. That future training (to be delivered by Dr Stephanie Snape of Warwick 
University) include something around how Overview & Scrutiny works 
within Committees.  

4. An agreement that all Chairs of Committees would give serious 
consideration to future topics for review and what could be included in the 
Scrutiny Programme Board’s Work Programme (and send 
ideas/suggestions to the Democratic Services Manager by email) 

5. That future training for Members around Overview & Scrutiny should 
include -: 
Feedback / Challenge skills 
Assertiveness / impact questions  
Finance service knowledge 
How to form and ask the right questions 

6. That an internal “Buddying” scheme be considered to support Councillors 
new to the Overview & Scrutiny role. 

7. That Overview & Scrutiny Committees and the Scrutiny Programme 
Board’s agendas should be Member led rather than determined by 
officers. 

 

Agenda Item 3

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Short C.V. for Dr Stephanie Snape 

 

Dr Stephanie Snape (BA Hons Oxon, PhD Bristol) is Research Director of 

the English Regions Network Research & Development Programme at the 

Institute of Governance & Public Management, University of Warwick.  She 

took up her Warwick post in November 2002.  Prior to moving to Warwick, 

Stephanie was Associate Director of the Institute of Local Government 

Studies (INLOGOV), University of Birmingham.  During her time at 

INLOGOV, Stephanie built up a national reputation for her work on new 

council constitutions.  She was project leader for the national evaluation of 

new political management arrangements in local government, funded by IDeA 

and DETR, and was lead author of the final report and author of the Self-

Evaluation Toolkit for new political structures (published by DETR/IDeA).  

Stephanie has spoken on various aspects of new political structures at a 

variety of conferences and workshops.  She completed a project with Chris 

Skelcher of INLOGOV on Political Executives and the New Ethical 

Framework (for DETR/IDeA).  She has undertaken research, consultancy and 

training for a number of authorities who have developed new political 

structures.  She was a member of the core project team of the Modular 

Constitutions project which was commissioned by DETR.  In January 2001, 

Stephanie was appointed Specialist Adviser to a Parliamentary Sub-

Committee inquiry on new political structures.  She also led the INLOGOV 

team which undertook a DTLR project on identifying good practice in 

overview and scrutiny.  This project reported in September 2002.  Stephanie 

also worked on a range of other local government issues at INLOGOV, 

including unitary local government, partnership working, the history of local 

government, comparative local government and the interface between health 

and local government.  She is a specialist on the evaluation of public policy 

and has written extensively on the subject.  She edits the premier local 

government academic journal, Local Government Studies. 

Current & Recent Research Projects 

 

• Research Director for Warwick ERN Research & Development 

Programme, which for 2003/04 involves five research projects. 

• Project Leader for ERN funded evaluation of regional scrutiny.  Reported 

in Spring 2003. 

• Project Leader for DTLR funded evaluation of overview & scrutiny 

arrangements in English local government.  Reported in September 2002. 

• Project Leader for DETR/IDeA funded national evaluation of new 

political management arrangements in local government, which reported 

in April 2000. 

• Worked with Chris Skelcher on a DETR/IDeA funded project examining 

the relationship between political executives & the new ethical framework. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



 2 

• Co-convenor (with Dr Shirley McIver of the Health Services Management 

Centre) of an ESRC funded seminar series, ‘Improving Partnerships 

between Health and Local Authorities’. 

• Undertook research and development to support inter-agency working to 

improve the health of a deprived community in South Cheshire, funded by 

a range of statutory agencies, with M. Willis & Shirley McIver. 

• Evaluated scrutiny arrangements of Wiltshire County Council, with 

Frances Taylor. 
 

Selected Academic & Practitioners Outputs  

 

'Closer to the Customer? Local Government and International Experience', 

Public Policy & Administration, 1996, Vol 11 No 4, pp.45-55, with J. 

Fenwick. 

 ‘Modernising Standards of Conduct: Ethics & the Councillor’, Parliamentary 

Affairs, forthcoming January 2001, with C. Skelcher. 

‘New Political Management Arrangements’, Local Governance, Issue 3 of 2000. 

 ‘Scrutiny’, Local Governance, Issue 3 of 2000, forthcoming, with F. Taylor. 

‘The Performance of New Unitary Councils in England’, Local Governance, 

1999, Vol 2, Issue 3, with J. Raine. 

‘Three Years On: Reviewing the Local Government Modernisation Programme’, 

Local Governance, Issue 3 of 2000, forthcoming. 

‘New Political Structures: Learning from the Pioneers’, Solace Journal, 

Summer 2000, pp12-13. 

A Hard Nut to Crack?  Making Overview & Scrutiny Work, Paper in the LGA 

Designing Governance: Issues in Modernisation series, April 2001, with F. 

Taylor. 

‘Chapter Five: Councillors and Overview and Scrutiny’, in A Councillor’s 

Guide 2001, IdeA, 2001. 

Overview and Scrutiny Module:  Advanced Level, IDeA Modern Members 

programme, IDeA, 2001, with L. McQue, F. Taylor & V. Hewitt. 

Methodological and Theoretical Approaches to Evaluation, Discussion Paper, 

April 1997, PHRRC, University of Salford. 

New Forms of Political Management Arrangements, IDeA/DETR, 2000, with 

S. Leach, D. Hall, F. Taylor, J. Stewart & M. Clarke. 

New Forms of Political Management Arrangements: Self Evaluation Toolkit, 

IDeA/DETR, 2000. 

Political Executives & the New Ethical Framework: Interim Report, 

INLOGOV, for DETR/IDeA, with C. Skelcher, May 2000. 

Political Executives & the New Ethical Framework: Final Report, 

IDeA/DETR, with C. Skelcher, November 2000. 
 

Editorial Positions 

Editor of Local Governance from November 1999 to March 2001.   

Currently Editor of Local Government Studies (from January 2001). 
 

Page 10



a hard nut to crack?
making overview and scrutiny work
this paper has been prepared byStephanie Snape and Frances TaylorInstitute of Local Government StudiesSchool of Public Policy, University of Birmingham

April 2001

designing governanceissues in modernisation Page 11



Page 12



All rights reserved. Reproduction of this document is welcomed providing
the copyright holders are acknowledged and the text is not edited.
Copyright Local Government Association 2001
Published by LGA Publications, the Local Government Association
Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ.
Tel. 020 7664 3000  Fax. 020 7664 3030
LGA code F/CA137
ISBN 1 84049 243 0

Page 13



1

Introduction
Since its first mention in the 1998 greenpaper, Modernising local government: Localdemocracy and community leadership1, it isfair to say that it has been the issue of‘scrutiny’ which has caused the greatestdiscussion. Whilst ‘scrutiny’ has become‘overview and scrutiny’ and ‘back-benchers’have become ‘non-executives’ the topic isstill one that is hotly debated in town hallsacross the country. It has divided councillorsand in many cases it has divided councils. Tomany the separation of executive andscrutiny was seen as a way of sidelining thevast majority of councillors, giving them littleto do but nit-pick over decisions alreadytaken by an elite few.
There is now though, a growing acceptancethat ‘overview and scrutiny’ is not the onlyrole for councillors not on the executive. AnLGA task group for example found a rangeof other important roles for these members2.However, ‘overview and scrutiny’ is a keypart of the checks and balances necessary tohold decision-makers to account in all of thenew arrangements.
It is clear that developing effective overviewand scrutiny arrangements will be one of themost difficult tasks facing authorities overthe next two to five years. Everyone workingin local government – its members andofficers – is well aware of the scale of thetask facing them. Scrutiny is a hard nut tocrack.

1 DETR, Modernising local government: Localdemocracy and community leadership,1998, HMSO, London2 LGA, Real roles for members: role of non-executive members in new structures, 2000,LGA, London

Many of the early experimenting authorities– those that have been running scrutinycommittees for two or more years – are stillstruggling to make scrutiny work. Why?There are a multitude of reasons: theunfamiliarity of scrutiny ways of working;insufficient officer support; distrust fromcabinet members and chief officers;disengaged scrutiny councillors; and poormanagement of scrutiny processes.
However, scrutiny has to be made to work.And to pay dividends. All four models ofnew political management arrangementshave to include at least one overview andscrutiny committee. In most authorities themajority of councillors will sit on scrutinycommittees. Local government is alreadyunsettled by the groundswell of discontentand disquiet felt by some non-executives inexperimenting authorities.
Providing substantive roles in successful andinfluential overview and scrutiny committeeswill be one very important part of theformula for developing real roles for non-executive councillors. Local authorities alsocannot afford to create new politicalstructures which remain under-developedand frail. All parts of the new system mustbe healthy and serve a useful purpose if thesuccess of the whole is to be ensured.
And there is no doubt that scrutiny can servemany valuable purposes. It does not have torepresent ‘a review too far’. It could addsubstantial value to the work of anauthority, providing gains in terms of:

• better informed members, who becomeadept at investigating below the surface ofpolicies and strategies and consequentlydevelop a range of useful skills;

Page 14



2

• complementing the strategic and policy-setting work of the executive (or in‘alternative arrangements’ the policycommittees);
• ‘re-politicising’ the work of Best Value withinauthorities, by providing meaningfulmember oversight of continuousimprovement;
• overall, providing an interesting and valuedrole for non-executive councillors;
• developing deeper, more knowledgeablerelationships with partner organisations,through involving them in scrutiny work orthrough scrutinising their own work;
• encouraging public involvement in politicalmanagement arrangements, ultimatelycontributing to a necessary re-working oflocal councils’ relationship to it communities;
• tackling key ‘cross-cutting’ or ‘wicked issues’such as social exclusion, ill health andpoverty and low educational standards;
• stimulating a more reflective, evaluative andevidence-based culture within localgovernment; and
• contributing significantly to local councils’community leadership and planning role andgiving meaning to the new power of well-being.

In many councils the reality is far removedfrom this vision of how scrutiny could work.But, local government must find ways ofrealising these benefits. The main purpose ofthis paper is to examine the common pitfallsfacing scrutiny and to suggest some practicalways forward, which will go some way torealising the potential.

What is scrutiny?
But first things first. Any publication onscrutiny must address the issue of ‘what isscrutiny?’  Many of the problems that havedogged scrutiny committees and, flippingthe coin over, much of its potential, comesright back to the problems that havesurrounded its definition. ‘Scrutiny’ is aslippery, contested concept. There is simplyno one definition.
Some of this confusion has been producedby the government’s own evolving view ofhow scrutiny committees should work. So,instead of ‘scrutiny’, which was consideredto place too much emphasis on nit-pickingover executive decisions, the governmentdeveloped the term ‘overview and scrutiny’,introducing the concept of scrutinycouncillors having a powerful role in‘overview’ of the development and review ofkey policies and strategies. This did not endthe debate. Confusion remains over theprecise definition. But such confusion canwork to the advantage of scrutiny; where noclear boundary exists, scrutiny can pushboundaries or shape a definition to suit theindividual authority.
Part of the confusion over definition resultsbecause scrutiny performs not one function,but many. In the government guidance(DETR, 2000), the following five key roles areset down.
1.  Holding the executive to account
This comes in two forms:

• scrutinising decisions before they are madeor before they are implemented, throughcall-in mechanisms and, more generally,being consulted by the executive; and

Page 15



3

• scrutinising decisions after they have beenimplemented.
It is the former which is potentially the mostdifficult scrutiny role to undertakesuccessfully. And, it will be a challenge forall authorities to develop the right balance in‘holding the executive to account’. Toohostile and adversarial, and the executivewill simply refuse to co-operate, producingdangerous, damaging divisions within anauthority. But, too cosy and cordial, andoverview and scrutiny will have failed toundertake its ‘critical friend’ role.
It is no surprise that many of theexperimenting authorities have ducked theissue altogether, failing to develop asubstantive role in this area and, instead,concentrating upon the other roles forscrutiny. However, such a position will bedifficult to maintain since all authorities haveto develop call-in mechanisms, and overviewand scrutiny committees have a clear role inscrutinising the forward plans which will beproduced by the executive.
2.  Policy review
This is a far more appetising and appealingrole for scrutiny members (and supportingofficers). Undertaking investigative,deliberative reviews of policy is a seductiveendeavour. Policy reviews can take manyforms:

• undertaking a review as part of developingkey policies to be included in the policyframework of the council;
• a policy review might examine how well apolicy has been implemented and whetherthe desired outcomes have been met; or

• councils could conduct wide-ranging reviewsof policy, for example, a review of housingpolicy in general.
They could be cross-cutting, or client-focused, concentrate on the ‘big picture’ orinvestigate more detailed issues. Someauthorities have tended to style such policyreviews on the parliamentary selectcommittee approach, with a focus on oralhearings and written evidence. Others haveused a wider range of methods, includingworkshops, seminars, public meetings, pressreleases, mystery shopping, commissioninginternal and external research, and so on.
This is surely a welcome change from themeetings-based approach of the traditionalcommittee system. And, in those authoritieswhich are pioneering more creativeapproaches to scrutiny – such asBedfordshire County Council, Barnsley,Haringey, Hartlepool – many scrutinymembers find this role particularlyinteresting and satisfying.
3.  Policy development
Overview and scrutiny committees can alsoplay a significant role in policy development.Authorities can decide to create separatepolicy development forums, and many have,including Suffolk County Council andHerefordshire. Certainly, it is a commoncomplaint of non-executive councillors thatthey often miss the close involvement inpolicy development that the committeesystem provided. Whether an authoritycreates separate policy development forumsor decides to subsume this role in overviewand scrutiny committees, the message isclear: non-executives must have asubstantive role in developing policies.

Page 16



4

However, in reality there is no neatseparation between development andreview of policy. If scrutiny committeesreview policy, then they will necessarilymake suggestions for its development(unless the policy is deemed to need norevisions).
4.  Best Value reviews
It is at the discretion of individual authoritiesas to how they relate Best Value to theirnew political structures. The executive musthave a role in leading the search forcontinuous improvement, but councils canalso decide to allocate the oversight ofindividual Best Value reviews to overviewand scrutiny committees. Many authoritiesare seeking to intertwine Best Value andscrutiny.
There are various ways to make theconnection:

• authorities can create a Best Value scrutinycommittee, which is charged with the taskof examining all Best Value reviews;
• individual reviews can, instead, be allocatedto their respective overview and scrutinycommittee (education reviews to theeducation and lifelong learning committee,refuse collection to the environmentcommittee, and so on); and
• individual or paired ‘lead’ members can beallocated to individual reviews, drawn fromthe membership of the relevant scrutinycommittees.

In practice, many authorities are strugglingto make successful connections betweenscrutiny and Best Value. Largely this isbecause Best Value has become such amanagerial and technical process.  Best

Value documents are often so polished and‘complete’ that members find it difficult tofind a way to ‘chip into’ them. In the longerterm, however, scrutiny could provide avaluable role in ‘re-politicising’ Best Value,something which is urgently needed.
5.  External scrutiny
The government also envisages a role foroverview and scrutiny committees in‘external scrutiny’ – the examination andinvestigation of the work and impact ofoutside bodies on the communities that acouncil serves. There is great potential in thisrole to support the community leadershiprole of local government and to givemeaning to the new power of well-being.But, there are also great dangers; skill will berequired to ensure that relationships withoutside bodies are not made worse byscrutiny rather than deepening the council’sunderstanding of partnership working.Generally, experimenting authorities havebeen nervous of developing this role.
However, there are some notableexceptions. Kirklees Council has beendeveloping an external scrutiny role for someyears, with some useful success stories. AndBedfordshire County Council has nowundertaken a number of external scrutinyreviews. It will be important to capitalise onthe practical lessons from these pioneeringauthorities.
In particular, local authorities need todevelop the knowledge and skills toundertake health scrutiny - given that thegovernment has outlined proposals in theNHS Plan and the Health and Social Care Billfor a major role for local authorities inundertaking scrutiny of health serviceorganisations.

Page 17



5

These five key roles for scrutiny collectivelyrepresent an enormous challenge – andwork programme – for overview andscrutiny committees. However, scratch alittle deeper and it is possible to extendthese roles further. Figure1 identifies 13roles for scrutiny. A number are inter-linkedand inter-dependent.
In addition to the five roles detailed above,scrutiny can be shaped around a generaloversight role in performance managementand review. And some authorities havelargely honed their scrutiny function aroundthis approach, with Best Value reviews asthe staple diet for scrutiny committees.Related to this, it is also possible to design akey task for scrutiny in ensuring thatcorporate priorities are met.
Figure 1: roles for overview and scrutiny
• holding the executive to account – bothbefore and after decisions are made;
• policy review;
• policy development;
• Best Value reviews;
• external scrutiny;
• performance management and review;
• ensuring corporate priorities are met;
• area scrutiny;
• monitoring and revising the constitution;
• engaging partner organisations;
• engaging the public;
• engaging the media; and
• providing satisfying roles for non-executive councillors.
Authorities can also choose to undertakearea scrutiny, examining key policies whichrelate to a particular location or community.These can be undertaken in partnership with

area bodies – and at least ensure that thereare good communications between areastructures and scrutiny. Some authoritieshave also given their scrutiny function aleading role in monitoring and revising theirnew constitutions.
And, as stated above, scrutiny has great –sadly usually untapped – potential to engagepartners and the public. And in order toengage the public, authorities often have toengage the media, and some have done sosuccessfully. Finally, scrutiny will fail if it doesnot provide satisfying roles for non-executives.
Looked at from one perspective, such anextensive list of potential roles could beviewed as handcuffs, fettering the successfuldevelopment of scrutiny. Certainly, such alist is daunting. But, looked at in anotherway, such a wide definition – and so manypotential roles – is a wonderful carte blanchefor any scrutiny committee.
Principles for overview and scrutiny
But it is not just a question of roles. It is alsouseful to consider underlying principles ofworking – which can shape the work anddevelopment of scrutiny. Figure 2 outlinessuch principles. In undertaking policy reviewand development work, adopting adeliberative, investigative and evidence-based approach is likely to produce thegreatest results. Such work will also requirescrutiny committees to be proactive, willingto shape their own agendas and workloads.
However, in holding the executive toaccount, committees will need to beresponsive and flexible. Overall, goodpractice would involve working in an open,transparent, accountable and inclusivemanner. And many of the greatest gains

Page 18



6

could come through adopting an outward-looking focus, involving the partners andpublic.
Ultimately, overview and scrutinycommittees are not decision-makingcommittees, they are influencing bodies, andtheir success will depend on how well theydevelop influencing skills and channels. And,scrutiny is strengthened if it can draw oncross-party support – but developing cross-party working will always be moreproblematic in some authorities.
Figure 2: principles of working
• deliberative;
• investigative;
• evidence-based;
• open;
• transparent;
• accountable;
• responsive;
• outward-looking;
• inclusive;
• proactive;
• flexible;
• cross-party; and
• influencing.
Common pitfalls and risks
Roles and principles of working areimportant but making scrutiny work inaction is far more challenging. Theexperience of experimenting authoritiessuggests that there are a number of keypitfalls or risks which authorities frequentlyencounter in developing scrutiny (see Figure3).

Figure 3: common pitfalls and risks
• conflicting definitions of overview andscrutiny;
• re-creating the committee system;
• under-resourcing overview and scrutiny;
• unrealistic and unmanageable workprogrammes;
• poor management of scrutiny processes;
• lack of co-ordination of scrutinycommittee work;
• weak links to other new structures;
• marginalised opposition role; and
• inexperienced chairing.
Conflicting definitions of scrutiny
One of the most obdurate limiting factors isthe existence of conflicting definitions ofscrutiny. In experimenting authorities therecan be four or five different interpretationsof scrutiny’s role, held by various individualsand groups. A typical ‘set’ of interpretations– though admittedly a caricature – would gosomething like this:

• the chief executive and chief officers -concerned about the potential divisions thatscrutiny can spawn and workloadimplications – argue that scrutiny should beclosely linked to Best Value, with noseparate dedicated officers;
• the leader and cabinet members –concerned about the potential for divisionswithin and between party groups - concurwith the chief executive, and also want toplay down the ‘holding the cabinet toaccount’ role;

Page 19



7

• scrutiny chairs and councillors want to beactively holding the cabinet to account, aswell as undertaking a wide-ranging policyreview and development role, and wantseparate dedicated support;
• the opposition emphasise that scrutiny isbest led from the front by the ‘naturalscrutineers’ ie themselves; and
• the officers providing direct support toscrutiny committees see the potential ofscrutiny, and are often sympathetic to theviews of scrutiny chairs and councillors, butalso understand officer workload concerns.

Such varying interpretations are a naturalconsequence of the above-mentioneddifficulties in providing a neat, tidy definitionfor scrutiny. They also clearly reflect thediffering power structures within authorities.And such differences of opinion are to beexpected in the short-term.
However, they should be explicitly andopenly debated within authorities, throughthe use of workshops and facilitatedseminars. There are obviously alsoopportunities for scrutiny councillors andsupport officers to exploit this confusion andto seize the initiative. However, in the longerterm such different interpretations are likelyto hamper and hamstring overview andscrutiny.
Recreating the committee system
Changing the working practices, habits,rituals and culture of a system of decision-making which dominated local governmentfor over 150 years will not happenovernight. New political structures have anatural tendency to reshape and reformback into traditional practices and processes.

It is quite common for overview and scrutinycommittees to continue to use committeesystem processes: using the same committeerooms, set out in the same style; continuingthe same officer-member pattern of work;re-creating the same format for minutes andreports; and, even, in some authoritiescontinuing to vote on recommendations andresolutions. Such a continuation oftraditional practice is a denial of the needsof scrutiny. The wide-ranging roles set outhere will rarely be achieved through such ameetings-based style of working.
Under-resourcing overview and scrutiny
Many experimenting authorities havereflected the broad range of roles possiblefor scrutiny with what read as highlyinfluential terms of reference. But these‘paper powers’ will remain just that ifoverview and scrutiny committees are notprovided with adequate resourcing.Currently, many authorities are under-resourcing scrutiny. And there are manygenuine reasons why this is the case. Inparticular, there is often a desire to evolvescrutiny resourcing gradually or resourceconstraints limit progress.
For some authorities, especially the smallerdistrict councils, under-resourcing is likely tocontinue for some time. But, is it reallysustainable to simply resource officersupport through a committee clerk – withno other direct support? And howsustainable will it be in the long-term toallocate no separate budget for scrutiny?Undertaking the investigative, deliberativepolicy review role alone can be highlyresource intensive, especially if authoritiesdevelop more creative scrutiny processessuch as commissioning internal and externalresearch, site visits, workshops, publicmeetings, press launches and so on.

Page 20



8

Unrealistic and unmanageable workprogrammes
It is surprising how quickly what appear tobe very light workloads for scrutiny can soonescalate into very heavy, unrealistic workprogrammes. Indeed, if a scrutiny committeewas to undertake all of the roles laid downby government totally comprehensively, itwould be meeting daily!
Just overseeing individual Best Value reviewscan be a substantial workload. It is notsurprising that only three to six months afterstarting work scrutiny committees can feelthat their workloads are becomingunmanageable. Regularly holding scrutinymeetings with ten, 12 or more items pushesout the more proactive, deliberative workand can be a powerful force supporting there-creation of the committee system.
Poor management of scrutiny processes
Related to both unmanageable workprogrammes and under-resourcing is theissue of poor management of scrutinyprocesses and outcomes. Much of the policyreview and development work, the BestValue work and even a great part of‘holding the executive to account’ requiresgood project management skills. Thereneeds to be clear forward programmes ofwork, so that both the scrutiny committeesand officers within departments can preparein advance for scrutiny reviews.
There is also a temptation with scrutiny workto ask for more and more information,which leads to reviews taking far longerthan expected. But scrutiny reviews need tohave firm deadlines and clear outcomes –another issue which has tended to beneglected in the early experimentationperiod for scrutiny. All this requires good

management processes and mechanisms.This does not all have to be undertaken byofficers. Scrutiny chairs and committees alsohave responsibility for managing their timeand workloads.  However, a certain level ofofficer support is needed.
Lack of co-ordination of scrutinycommittee work
There is a tremendous amount of – welcome– diversity in the structures that authoritieshave created for scrutiny. However, onecommon approach is to create a series ofcross-cutting, mixed with functional,committees. These can number from threeup to 12 (the number that Birmingham CityCouncil currently have). In the early daysauthorities understandably overlooked theimportance of co-ordinating the work ofscrutiny committees. But such co-ordinatingforums can play a vital part in sharing thelearning around scrutiny and simply co-ordinating potential gaps and overlaps.
Weak links to other new structures
In the first years of experimentationauthorities have tended to concentrate onestablishing the main foundations of theirnew arrangements: the ‘structures’, such ascommittees, executive, and so on.Understandably, less attention has been paidto the relationships that need to developbetween these structures.
In consequence, the linkages betweenscrutiny and the cabinet, full council, areaarrangements (if any), quasi-judicialcommittees and policy forums (if any) havebeen weak. Given that scrutiny is aninfluencing body at heart developingeffective relationships with the other parts ofthe system will be crucial to its success.

Page 21



9

Marginalised opposition role
Opposition parties and councillors oftenview scrutiny as their natural territory. Andthis in itself is enough to terrify somemajority party councillors. One of the keypolitical debates around scrutiny – rehearsedin every experimenting authority – is ‘whatrole should the opposition play in scrutiny?’
Some majority party councillors (if there is amajority) are adamant that scrutiny shouldnot be ceded to the opposition, in the beliefthat they could do much damage if theywere given a leading role. This has led to themajority party taking all chairs and vice-chairs in some councils. The danger is thatopposition parties feel marginalised fromone of the few functions in executivesystems in which they believe they can makea difference.
Inexperienced chairing
A common concern has related toinexperienced chairing. This does not meanthat scrutiny chairs have not had years ofexperience at chairing traditional servicecommittees; they often do. What it means isthat chairing scrutiny is fundamentallydifferent from chairing a traditional servicecommittee. Scrutiny chairs and vice-chairsare the first people to admit this. But why isit so different? There are a number ofexplanations:

• the range of roles that a scrutiny committeeis expected to fulfil is very wide, which canlead to a potentially high volume of work toundertake;
• the most innovative scrutiny committees usea wider range of activities and processesthan the traditional service committee;

• scrutiny is expected to working cross-party,‘outside’ of the party group system;
• as an influencing body, scrutiny mustestablish the right balance in its relationshipswith the executive, chief officers, the public,partners and press. Many times the chair isworking as a ‘diplomat’.

Figure 4: role of scrutiny chairs andvice-chairs
• provide leadership and direction;
• ensure that work is member-led eg thatmembers lead on developing a workprogramme;
• ensure that members have necessaryskills;
• endeavour to engage all members ofcommittee;
• ensure that adequate resources (financialand officer support) are provided;
• act as a ‘gatekeeper’, prioritising (withcommittee) main work;
• work to minimise common pitfalls thatbefall scrutiny;
• co-ordinate work with other scrutinycommittees and chairs (and sharelearning);
• develop a constructive, ‘critical friend’relationship with the executive, especiallywith relevant portfolio holder(s); and
• develop a constructive, ‘critical friend’relationship with the chief officers in thedepartments that committee scrutinises.

Page 22



10

And so chairing scrutiny represents a realchallenge. A number of the key roles forscrutiny chairs are outlined in Figure 4. It is adaunting role description. However, scrutinychairs and vice-chairs can be a very powerfulforce in energising their committees. And itis time to begin to pay attention to theindividual roles within new politicalmanagement roles. Few will be as importantas that of scrutiny chair.
This is not an exhaustive list of pitfalls andrisks. And not all councils are demonstratingthese weaknesses. Other concerns expressedby members and officers in experimentingauthorities include problems with engagingall members, conflicts between officerssupporting scrutiny and officers withindepartments and queries relating toappropriate questioning styles for oralhearings.
Some authorities voice particular concernsabout how to relate scrutiny to the partygroup. Encouragingly, many authoritiesappear to have established effective cross-party working and some work is now beingundertaken on how party groups need tochange to meet the challenges of newpolitical structures (see in particular Copus,20013).
Realising the potential
Local authorities are quick learners.Although scrutiny is a particularly hard nutto crack, many authorities are beginning tofind practical solutions to the commonpitfalls outlined here. Although there are amultitude of good practice examplesemerging, the paper concentrates on threekey areas: identifying and managing work
3 Colin Copus, It’s my party: the role of thegroup in executive arrangements, 2001,LGA, London

programmes, officer support to scrutiny anddeveloping effective scrutiny processes.
Identifying and managing workprogrammes
There are some relatively sensible guidelineswhich, if followed, will avoid overloaded,unmanageable work programmes. The first,and most important, is that scrutinycommittees need to filter potential items ofwork; to be selective and to prioritise.
Different items may require differentapproaches. For example, scrutinycommittees will need to examine theexecutive’s forward plans but may onlychoose to examine one or two items in anydepth. Similarly, scrutiny committees may beasked their views by the executive on keypolicies and plans but such consultationdoes not have to involve in-depthinvestigation. And, is it always necessary toexamine every Best Value review to the samelevel? A more selective approach, examiningmore problematic Best Value reviews ingreater depth and others more cursorily (if atall) may pay more dividends.
An essential part of this filtering andprioritisation process is simply saying ‘no’. Ifan issue is deemed not to be high priority, orif the time is not considered right, or ifanother internal or external body has justreviewed the issue or is about to do so, thenrefusing to take on an issue is a logical step.The Local Government Act does provide thatany member of an overview and scrutinycommittee can place any relevant item onthe agenda, ensuring in particular thatmembers from minority parties can raisespecific issues. However, in order to keepwork programmes manageable all memberswill need to ensure that this right is usedresponsibly.

Page 23



11

It is also important to select only a smallnumber of issues per year to examine indepth. Given the limited resources oftenavailable – in particular the constraints onmember and officer time - it is unrealistic toselect more than a few items for intensive,deliberative investigation. Some of theexperimenting authorities have argued thata single committee cannot undertake morethan two to three in-depth scrutiny reviewsper year. And, these scrutiny reviews needcareful project planning and management.
It is a mistake to plan a two-year programmeof work and then become so entangled inundertaking this work that scrutinycommittees never reflect back on theirprogress against their original intentions.Work programmes should be reviewed andrevised regularly. Six month workprogrammes are probably more workablethan annual or two yearly programmes.Some authorities have adopted the practiceof reprinting and reviewing their workprogrammes at each formal meeting.
Probably the best advice is to start small,find your feet, learn what works and whatdoes not and then be more ambitious. It isfar easier to add items to your workloadthan to remove them – and while one isdisheartening, the other breeds a sense ofachievement. Scrutiny committees shouldnever completely fill up their workprogrammes; there is always a need to leavesome space free for urgent, unpredictableissues to be addressed.
In order to increase confidence amongstscrutiny councillors it is sensible to identifysome quick wins. And do not avoidpolitically contentious or high profile issues;these might just be the type of ‘meaty’ workthat scrutiny councillors will really enjoyworking on. Topical issues, such as flooding,

the petrol debate or foot and mouth are justthe sort of issues which will engagemembers (and the public). Certainly, scrutinymembers need to take a lead in selectingand revising their work programmes.Scrutiny will only ever work if it is led andowned by members. And officers supportingscrutiny need to understand the ‘world ofmembers’; what motivates and intereststhem. This is essential to supporting amember-led process.
Authorities are also experimenting withusing different ways of working in order tomanage their workloads. Some scrutinyinvestigations are undertaken in ‘task andfinish’ small working groups, meetingweekly and reporting back to the maincommittee. Other authorities haveexperimented with ‘paired members’ orindividual ‘lead’ members whose role is tothoroughly understand a part of thecommittee’s remit and to take a lead in thecommittee deliberations on these items.
Officer support
One of the most controversial – andpotentially divisive issues – concerningscrutiny is officer support. There are manypoints of view on how officer supportshould be organised. Many scrutinycouncillors argue for separate, dedicated –and to their mind independent – officersupport. Chief officers tend to be concernedabout the potential for separate scrutinyunits to produce divisions and tensionswithin the traditionally unified officerstructure. And the spectre of the client-contractor split is a rather too recentexample of the dangers of specialist units.District councils, in particular, worry aboutresourcing the rising demands andexpectations of scrutiny councillors forofficer support.

Page 24



12

To date, three main approaches haveemerged in experimenting (which aresummarised in Figure 5). The minimalapproach, which often dominates in smallauthorities, involves the allocation ofcommittee officers to scrutiny committees –on a part-time basis. This is the only directofficer support provided in such authorities.In the longer term it is doubtful if this willprove sufficient.
Figure 5: approaches to officer support
MinimalDirect officer support is provided bycommittee officers, who also providesupport to other political forums, such asthe executive, full council and so on.
IntegratedDirect officer support is provided, on a part-time basis, from a variety of sources,including committee services, officers withindepartments and corporate policy officers.All these officers also undertake work forthe executive.
SpecialistDirect officer support is provided by ascrutiny support unit with dedicatedofficers, who only work to their overviewand scrutiny committees.
The most popular approach, in largerauthorities, is for integrated officer support.In this model, officer support – all part-time– is drawn from a range of sources, fromcommittee services, policy and operationalofficers in departments and from corporatepolicy and research officers. A good exampleof this model in practice is Kirklees.The least common of the three models is thespecialist, dedicated scrutiny unit. Thisusually consists of policy officers andcommittee clerks, but can also include

officers with a background in audit, valuefor money work and Best Value. There arestill relatively few dedicated units – the mostcommonly quoted are Bedfordshire CountyCouncil, Haringey and Barnsley, but thereare others including Cardiff County, North-East Lincolnshire and West Sussex County.
While the minimal approach will be difficultto sustain, most authorities will have tomake a judgement between the integratedand separate models. There are advantagesand disadvantages to both approaches. Oneof the key debates is the one alreadymentioned: the danger of separate scrutinyunits producing divisive tensions.
Some also worry about the cost of separateunits. Bedfordshire County Council’s supportto scrutiny is currently costing in the regionof £300,000. This may seem a lot but itrepresents less than one tenth of one percent of the total expenditure of the council.
The integrated approach will also have costsattached – but they will simply be lessvisible. Another concern is how attractivescrutiny posts in such separate units wouldprove. The answer is probably that short-term seconded posts will prove less of anincentive, however, full-time posts willattract officers seeking to undertake variedand interesting policy work. For districtcouncils many of these arguments willappear rather academic; an integratedapproach may be the only logical or practicalmodel to adopt.
Regardless of the decision over separate ordedicated direct officer support, there are arange of good practice guidelines whichauthorities might wish to follow. These aresummarised in Figure 6.

Page 25



13

Figure 6: direct officer support: goodpractice guidelines
• allocate a senior officer (second or thirdtier) to provide an officer lead forscrutiny. This can be either a full-time orpart-time role for the officer;
• ensure that officer support to scrutinyprovides an effective mix of the followingtypes of officer and skills (on a part-timeor full-time basis): corporate policyofficers, research officers (if any), serviceor issue-specific officers,operational/technical officers, committeeservices officers;
• other useful skills may include:community development officers, officersexperienced in consultation processes,Best Value officers, audit and value formoney officers;
• do not require officers to take on scrutinywork in addition to their existingworkload; and
• provide training and development forofficers directly supporting scrutiny,including committee officers (whose rolein scrutiny is very different from that intraditional service committees).
This just covers direct officer support toscrutiny. In reality, there are four key officerimplications of developing scrutinyfunctions: direct officer support (asdiscussed); supplying information andevidence; responding to scrutiny findings;and general awareness of the work ofscrutiny. Each of these requires carefulconsideration and thought.

Developing effective scrutiny processes
At their best scrutiny committees can workin more effective, creative and interestingways than a traditional service committee.Authorities can avoid the danger ofrecreating committee processes and culture.
Councils may choose to do this by stylingtheir scrutiny committees on parliamentaryselect committees; with U-shapedcommittee tables, seating for the press andpublic, nameplates for scrutiny councillorsand allocated tables for internal and externalwitnesses. This is a seductive model todevelop. But, would it be as restrictive as thetraditional committee system?
Certainly, it is possible to develop a verywide range of scrutiny committee processes,which could be selected from depending onthe priority of the issue, the resourcesavailable to allocate to it and the nature ofthe issue. In this way scrutiny would have a‘menu’ of processes to choose from (Figure7 summarises some of the key internal andexternal processes that could be adopted).
As well as oral hearings, scrutiny committeescan use site visits, public meetings, mysteryshopping and other user research methods,workshops and seminars and so on.
The more scrutiny committees use differentmethods, the greater is the need to managethe process of investigation and review. In-depth, intensive investigation needs to beproject managed.

Page 26



14

Figure 7: scrutiny processes andactivities
Internal processes:
• discussion within committee meeting(s)and/or special meetings;
• officer reports and presentations tooverview and scrutiny committees;
• interviewing officers;
• interviewing executive members;
• interviewing non-executive members (egchairs of area forums, chairs of quasi-judicial forums, etc);
• desk-based review of available internaland external documentation (eg relevantstrategies and plans, budgetary andfinancial information, etc);
• site visits within the authority;
• case studies of individual cases; and
• commissioned internal research.
External processes – general:
• interviewing expert witnesses;
• conference attendance;
• visits to other authorities and otherorganisations; and
• commissioning external research.

External processes – engaging partners(business sector, other public agencies,voluntary and community):
• co-option of representatives of partnerorganisations on overview and scrutinycommittees;
• joint working party with partnerorganisations;
• interviewing representatives of partnerorganisations;
• visits to view work of partners; and
• workshops/discussions with partners.
External processes -engaging the public andusers of services:
• co-option of representatives of usergroups on overview and scrutinycommittees;
• interviewing representatives of usergroups;
• workshops with representatives of usergroups;
• public meetings;
• commissioning research to determinepublic/user views; and
• press releases and media launches.

Page 27



15

Interestingly, some authorities, such asTameside, are developing a more projectplanning approach to scrutiny. In theseauthorities a short report is prepared beforea review is begun which sets out theframework for the investigation: its terms ofreference, objectives, methods of inquiry,available resources, timescales and desiredoutputs. However, such management ofscrutiny should never become sobureaucratic and inflexible that membersbecome excluded from the process.
Attention is also increasingly being paid tothe different styles of report and minutetaking that scrutiny committees require.Shorter, summary reports, with key pointsclearly identified are better suited to theneeds of scrutiny than very long, detailedreports. There is also a great potential forthe role of committee officers to developfurther, with a move away from minuteswhich record decisions, to fuller transcriptswhich capture the content and substance ofdebate.
Alongside using a wider range of activitiesand changing reporting styles, authoritiesare beginning to realise the importance ofthe physical environment for scrutiny. If youwant to engage the public, partners and thepress, take a good look at your committeerooms. Will they support this process?Simple changes to the layout of a committeeroom can make a tremendous impact on thestyle of working. Could scrutiny committeesmeet occasionally in a more seminar styleroom and format? And a number ofauthorities are taking their committeemeetings outside the town and county hallor civic centre and holding meetings incommunity centres, libraries, leisure centresand so on.

Conclusions
Scrutiny currently is not working effectivelyin many experimenting authorities. But it canwork. And it has the potential to addconsiderable value to the work of localcouncils. The obstacles to developing moreeffective scrutiny arrangements areconsiderable – in particular, resourceconstraints and the opposition of powerfulindividuals and groups in authorities. But,there are practical solutions to many of thecommon pitfalls. And local authorities arelearning fast. That learning must becaptured and shared.
References
Copus, C. (2001), It’s my party: the role ofthe group in executive arrangements, LGA,London.
Department of Environment, Transport andRegions, DETR, (2000), New CouncilsConstitutions: Guidance Pack, StationeryOffice, London.
Snape, S. (2000), New Forms of PoliticalManagement Arrangements: Self EvaluationToolkit, IDeA/DETR, 2000.
Snape, S., Leach, S., Hall, D., Taylor, F.,Stewart, J. & Clarke, M. (2000), New Formsof Political Management Arrangements,IDeA/DETR, London.

Page 28



LGA code F/CA137ISBN 1 84049 243 0 234

For further information, please contact
the Local Government Association at:
Local Government House,
Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ
Telephone 020 7664 3000
Fax 020 7664 3030
Website www.lga.gov.uk
or telephone our general information
hotline on 020 7664 3131
For news and information
about local government:
visit www.local-government.net

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Solutions 

Development Programme  
For Local Government

Learning and Improvement Focus …  
Expert Delivery … Competitively Priced  

‘Scrutiny Solutions’ is an innovative development programme of learning activities designed to support 
local authorities in meeting the challenges facing their overview and scrutiny functions.  It has been 
developed by the Local Government Centre, University of Warwick with key partners.  The Scrutiny 
Solutions programme includes a two day residential course for scrutiny councillors, one day seminars, a 
wide range of ‘modular sessions’ which can be delivered in-authority, action learning sets, observation 
and mentoring for scrutiny chairs and committees, improvement-focused evaluations of scrutiny functions 
and research on key aspects of scrutiny work.   

A number of the development opportunities are delivered at Warwick, at our award-winning conference 
facilities.  But many are also available to be delivered in your authority or to a grouping of authorities.  
This provides the opportunity to tailor our programmes to your particular needs and situation.   

The touchstone of Scrutiny Solutions is our focus on learning and improvement.  Our Warwick-based 
residential programme and seminars have limits on numbers in order to ensure that they are learning 
tools rather than large scale, impersonal conferences.  All our in-authority work, including member 
development, evaluations and observations, focuses on improvement; working to ensure transformational 
change. 

The ‘Scrutiny Solutions’ Programme Director is Dr Stephanie Snape, widely known within local 
government for her work on overview and scrutiny, which has included extensive member development 
work for individual authorities, in-authority evaluations, research for central government, LGA and IDeA, 
the development of member development programmes for IDeA and others, advising parliamentary select 
committees, academic research and much more.  She has brought together a highly experienced team – 
both within the Local Government Centre at Warwick and amongst our partners – to provide a wide-
ranging programme of improvement-focused learning tools for local authorities. 

All activities are competitively priced, essential given the economic climate and drive to make efficiency 
savings in the public sector.   

Please read more about our Scrutiny Solutions programme below. 

1. Two Day Residential Programme for Scrutiny Councillors 
 
Scrutiny  Solutions: Unlocking the Potential 

15 – 16 September 2010 

This two day residential course provides an innovative, cutting-edge programme for experienced scrutiny 
councillors.  It addresses the key contemporary challenges facing scrutiny functions; from undertaking 
scrutiny of partnerships such as LSPs and the emerging Total Place pilots; to meaningful scrutiny of local 
council finances and the contribution scrutiny can make to recent efficiency drives.  There is also bang-
up-to-date information on new powers and duties.  As with all our Scrutiny Solutions events, the focus is 
on learning and improvement and throughout the two day course there are opportunities for participants to 
discuss their own particular problems and challenges in ‘Scrutiny Surgeries’.  The residential course is 
being delivered by Dr Stephanie Snape from Warwick Business School and Mark Palmer, from South 

1Local Government Centre, Warwick Business School, University of Warwick, Coventry CV4 7AL 
Tel: 02476 524109 Email: lgc@wbs.ac.uk Website: www.wbs.ac.uk/go/lgc

Page 31



East Employers.  They have a long history of working together to develop scrutiny learning tools, including 
development seminars and in-authority evaluations.  The third facilitator is Claire Edwards, our Scrutiny 
Solutions Programme Manager and herself a scrutiny chair. 

Please note there is a limit on numbers, in order to ensure the course provides an effective learning 
environment for participants. 

Programme 

Day One 

10.30 Coffee & registration 
11.00  Introductions 
11.30 Being an Effective Scrutiny Leader 
12.30 Influencing Strategies & Styles 
1.30 Lunch 
2.30 Scrutiny Surgery 
3.30 Coffee break 
3.45 Partnership Scrutiny: Making it Work Locally 
5.45 Review of Day One 
6.00 Close 
7.30 Dinner 

Day Two 

9.00 Introduction to Day 2 
9.15 Finance & Efficiency Scrutiny 
10.45  Coffee Break 
11.00 Scrutiny Surgery 
12.00 Choice sessions: 

Relating to the Executive 
 OR… 

 Questioning Skills & Techniques  
1.00 Lunch 
2.00  Scrutiny Surgery 
3.00 Taking the Learning Forward 
3.30 Close 

2. One Day Learning Seminars 

Our one day national seminars have been selected to cover topics which are a current high priority for 
scrutiny councillors and officers but where there is often little guidance or information available.  The 
emphasis is on learning and improvement.  Please note that places are limited in order to ensure that 
there is an effective learning environment. 

Scrutinising Partnerships 

New scrutiny powers have placed an increasing expectation on scrutiny committees to address the ‘holy 
grail’ of scrutiny: effective scrutiny of partner bodies.  Such external scrutiny is widening from the initial 
focus on ‘health scrutiny’ to examining Local Area Agreements (LAAs) and all the partners involved in 
contributing to LAAs.  LAAs alongside developments such as Comprehensive Area Agreements and Total 
Place pilots means that external scrutiny is increasingly involving the scrutiny of ‘place’.  This seminar 
addresses these new powers and their possibilities, alongside case studies of partnership scrutiny and 
the opportunity to discuss participants own challenges in this area.   

2Local Government Centre, Warwick Business School, University of Warwick, Coventry CV4 7AL 
Tel: 02476 524109 Email: lgc@wbs.ac.uk Website: www.wbs.ac.uk/go/lgc

Page 32



Scrutinising Shared Services 

The ‘Shared Services’ agenda has taken a real hold in authorities, with councils working with 
neighbouring authorities and/or other organisations to transform their services.  Shared services do take a 
range of forms: integrated front office services such as two or more authorities developing a ‘one stop 
shop’ for the public; one authority providing expertise on back office functions such as legal services for a 
neighbour; or shared management arrangements such as a shared chief executive or senior 
management.  All these arrangements pose particular challenges for scrutiny.  This seminar examines 
this emerging area for scrutiny. 

Financial & Efficiency Scrutiny 

This seminar provides an essential guide for scrutiny councillors who want to understand how to 
undertake financial and efficiency scrutiny.  It will consider how elected members can effectively scrutinise 
their authority’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, revenue and capital budgets and budget monitoring 
information.  It will also consider the contribution scrutiny can make to the search for value for money and 
efficiency savings. 

Scrutiny of Children’s Services 

Scrutiny of Children’s Services is one of the most challenging areas for scrutiny to work in; complex 
legislative frameworks, high expectations, vulnerable clients and the potential for high profile service 
breakdown.  This seminar seeks to work with members and officers tasked with taking forward scrutiny in 
this difficult but rewarding area.  It is provided in partnership with Continyou, the well known and regarded 
community learning organisation working in the field of children and young people’s services. 

These seminars are scheduled to take place from July 2010.  If you are interested in attending one of the  
seminars please express an interest by emailing our Progamme Manager (contact details below).   

The above seminars can be tailored and shaped for in-authority delivery.  Contact the Programme 
Director or Manager (details below) for more information. 

3. In-Authority Scrutiny Seminars, Modules & other Learning Tools 

As well as our national programmes, we work with individual authorities – or groups of authorities – to 
tailor in-authority ‘scrutiny solutions’.    We can provide tailored learning opportunities which can vary from 
single modules of two hour duration to half day, full day or more, with seminars incorporating several 
sessions.  We can also deliver member development programmes involving a series of day or half day 
seminars.  Modules can be provided in the evening or at week-ends. 

Listed below are a range of single modules which we can provide organised into six key areas: 

Scrutiny Issues Single Modules Available 

Scrutiny Leadership & 
Team Building 

! Effective Leadership for Scrutiny (including a self-
assessment tool designed for those councillors with 
a leadership role) 

! Improving your Chairing Skills 

! Building an Effective Scrutiny Team (for single 
scrutiny committees or panels) 

! Effective Scrutiny Councillor – Scrutiny Officer 
Relationships 

Scrutiny Tasks, Strategies 
& Skills 

! Influencing Strategies & Styles 

! Developing an Effective Work Programme 

3Local Government Centre, Warwick Business School, University of Warwick, Coventry CV4 7AL 
Tel: 02476 524109 Email: lgc@wbs.ac.uk Website: www.wbs.ac.uk/go/lgc

Page 33



! Capturing the ‘Impact’ of Scrutiny 

! Effective Questioning & Listening Strategies  

The Politics of Scrutiny ! Relating to the Cabinet 

! Building Effective Cross-Party Working 

Scrutinising Partnerships ! Scrutinising Local Strategic Partnerships & Local 
Area Agreements 

! The Scrutiny of ‘Place’: Area Based Scrutiny 

! Scrutiny in Two Tier Areas 

Scrutinising Specific 
Service or Cross-Cutting 
Areas 

! Scrutiny of Children’s Services  

! Effective Health Scrutiny 

! Scrutiny of Fire & Rescue Services 

! Scrutiny of Economic Development 

! Financial & Efficiency Scrutiny 

Community-Focused 
Scrutiny 

! Developing Community-Focused Scrutiny 

! Involving the Media in the work of Scrutiny 

! Councillor Call for Action (CCFA) 

Scrutiny Powers & Policy ! New Scrutiny Powers 

! Transferring the Learning from Other Scrutiny 
Arenas: Lessons from Parliamentary Select 
Committees

While formats and content for modules varies according to the topic, our approach is to deliver modules 
which are highly interactive, with a focus on learning and improvement. 

Scrutiny Solutions can also offer authorities or groups of authorities: 

! Learning Set approaches, which use the action learning technique to address key challenges 
and problems over a series of meetings with an experienced learning facilitator. 

! Observation & Feedback of scrutiny chairs and vice chairs or of scrutiny meetings.  Such
observation and feedback can be very useful in identifying and addressing effective and 
ineffective strategies for managing meetings, building teams and questioning and listening 
strategies and techniques. 

! Mentoring & Coaching.  Similarly, scrutiny chairs and scrutiny officers often find it beneficial to 
have a mentor or coach to support their development.   

! Induction Training.  If your authority has a high turnover of scrutiny councillors or is a new 
unitary, induction training can be an essential learning intervention which ensures a good start to 
scrutiny work. 

All in-authority work would be tailored to the specific requirements of your council. 

4. In-Authority Evaluation & Research 

Overview and scrutiny functions can benefit enormously from evaluations undertaken by creditable 
external researchers.  A number of members of the Scrutiny Solutions Team are highly experienced at 

4Local Government Centre, Warwick Business School, University of Warwick, Coventry CV4 7AL 
Tel: 02476 524109 Email: lgc@wbs.ac.uk Website: www.wbs.ac.uk/go/lgc

Page 34



undertaking formative, improvement-focused evaluations of individual scrutiny functions.  When 
undertaken by a skilled evaluator, such research can be a highly effective learning tool for all involved and 
a catalyst for substantial change.   

Evaluations for individual authorities typically involve a range of methods:  

! observation of scrutiny meetings and briefings;  

! interviews with key individuals such as scrutiny chairs and vice chairs, scrutiny officers, chief 
officers, cabinet members etc;  

! focus groups with, for example: representatives of partner organisations: departmental officers 
who have had contact with scrutiny, through, for example, giving evidence or providing written 
reports: representatives of partner organisations;  

! surveys of councillors, officers and partners and public;  

! document analysis of scrutiny reports, agendas and minutes.   

Through our extensive experience of undertaking scrutiny evaluations, we have developed a range of key 
evaluation instruments, such as topic guides for interviews and focus groups, observation frameworks for 
meetings observation, surveys and document analysis frameworks.  However, every authority operates 
scrutiny in their own way and scrutiny evaluations must be designed to the individual authority.  And, 
when undertaking scrutiny evaluations, we work to ensure practical, realistic recommendations which we 
encourage authorities to take forward into action plans.  For examples of our scrutiny evaluation reports, 
please see our website. 

The Scrutiny Solutions team also has extensive experience of undertaking national research on scrutiny 
issues and can be commissioned to undertake both quantitative and qualitative research on key scrutiny 
issues for individual councils or groups of councils. 

To discuss scrutiny evaluations or research, contact our programme director or manager. 

5. The Scrutiny Solutions Team 

The Scrutiny Solutions Programme Director is Dr Stephanie Snape, with extensive experience of a wide 
variety of work in the field of overview and scrutiny.  She is supported in managing the programme by 
Claire Edwards, the Programme Manager, who is an administrator in the Local Government Centre and a 
councillor and Scrutiny Chair in her own right. 

The Programme Director and Manager have brought together an impressive team to deliver the Scrutiny 
Solutions programme, drawn from Local Government Centre staff, associates and our partners.  They 
include: Mark Palmer, Head of Improvement & Governance at South East Employers who has extensive 
experience of supporting scrutiny and recently has led innovative work on scrutiny of partnerships; Ines 
Newman, previously of LGIU and with extensive scrutiny involvement; Howard Davies, Director of the 
Local Government Centre who has investigated public involvement and scrutiny; Judi Billing, previously 
Director of the Leadership Academy at IDeA; Ian Bottrill, previously Leader of Warwickshire County 
Council and Director of Operations Continyou and Module Leader for Module 3 of the IDeA Leadership 
Academy; Fiona Campbell, former Director of the Democratic Health Network and former Head of 
Scrutiny at the GLA – a recognised national expert of health scrutiny. 

6. Contacting Us 

For more information on Scrutiny Solutions please contact either the programme director or manager: 

5Local Government Centre, Warwick Business School, University of Warwick, Coventry CV4 7AL 
Tel: 02476 524109 Email: lgc@wbs.ac.uk Website: www.wbs.ac.uk/go/lgc

Page 35



Programme Director: 
Dr Stephanie Snape 
Local Government Centre 
Warwick Business School 
University of Warwick 
Coventry
CV4 7AL 

Email:   stephanie.snape@wbs.ac.uk
Phone:  024 7652 4109 

Programme Manager: 
Claire Edwards 
Local Government Centre 
Warwick Business School 
University of Warwick 
Coventry
CV4 7AL 

Email: claire.edwards@wbs.ac.uk
Phone:  024 7652 4109 

6Local Government Centre, Warwick Business School, University of Warwick, Coventry CV4 7AL 
Tel: 02476 524109 Email: lgc@wbs.ac.uk Website: www.wbs.ac.uk/go/lgc

Page 36



UPDATE ON WORK PROGRAM : COUNCIL EXCELLENCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -  
18/11/10  

 
 

Reports to assist in monitoring the Committee’s work programme 
 
It was agreed by the Scrutiny Chairs Group in September 2008 to use the following 
reports to monitor the work programme for each Scrutiny Committee. The last item on 
each Scrutiny Committee agenda should be ‘Review of the Committee Work Programme’.  
 
 
Report 1 - Monitoring Report for Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
This report will list all items that have been selected by the Committee for inclusion on the 
work programme for the current year. 
 
It will also include items, such as previous Panel Reviews, where recommendations have 
been made to Cabinet. It is important that the implementation of these recommendations 
is monitored. Otherwise there is no measure of the success of scrutiny. 
 
For each item on the work programme, the report will give a description, an indication of 
how the item will be dealt with, a relative timescale for the work and brief comments on 
progress.  
 
 
Report 2 - Suggestions for Additions to Work Programme  
 
The Work Programme for the Committee should be reviewed at each meeting. This will 
enable members to ask for new Items to be added to the programme. This report will list 
any newly suggested items. Committee will then have the opportunity to agree (or not) for 
them to be added to the programme.  
   
 
Report 3 - Proposed Outline Meeting Schedule for the Municipal Year 
 
The report will, for each scheduled Committee meeting, list those items which are likely to 
be on the meeting agenda. This will give the opportunity for Committee members to take a 
greater lead in organising their work programme. 
 
 
Report 4 - Progress Report on In-Depth Panel Reviews 
 
This report will give a very brief update on progress / timescales for in-depth panel reviews 
which are in the ‘ownership’ of the Committee. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 37



 

REPORT 1 
MONITORING REPORT FOR SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  

COUNCIL EXCELLENCE : 2010 / 2011 
 

 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

17/03/10 
 

Community Cohesion  Officer Report 
(Carolyn Curr) 

 Council Excellence Committee 
meeting of 17

th
 March 2010 

requested that this item be included 
on the Committee’s work 
programme for 2010/11. 

 

17/03/10 
 

Freedom of Information Act Officer Report 
(Ian Coleman) 

 Follow-up report (from meeting held 
on 17

th
 March 2010) presented to 

8
th

 July meeting. No further actions 
requested.  

Complete 

08/07/10 
 

Future of Performance Management / 
replacement of CAA: 
- How will performance management operate 
once the CAA and statutory Performance 
Indicators have been removed?  
- Who collects the current PI data, how much 
effort is involved, and what use is made of it? 
- Which Performance Indicators are relevant 
and should be retained? 
- What information do members need to 
monitor the local authority effectively?  

Officer Report 
(Carolyn Curr) 
 
 

 A verbal report on the current view 
of the future for performance 
monitoring in the authority was 
provided at the meeting on 21

st
 

September. 
Further report to meeting on 31

st
 

January 2011 to include: 
 - Performance Indicators that could 
be useful in the future;  
- How might comparative data with 
statistical neighbours be delivered? 

 

08/07/10 Performance Monitoring (Quarterly updates 
on existing performance indicators – 
‘Exceptions’ only will be reported). 

Officer Reports 
(Carolyn Curr) 

 Quarterly Performance Monitoring 
Reports will be included on each 
agenda from September onwards. 

 

08/07/10 
 

Strategic Change Programme: 
- Regular updates on proposed savings;  
- Monitor the effectiveness of the Change 
Programme; 

Officer Reports 
(Dave Green) 
 

 A report on the progress of the 
Strategic Change Programme 
Board was provided for the meeting 
on 18

th
 November. A further report 

is planned for the Special meeting 
arranged for 28

th
 October 2010.  

 

P
a

g
e
 3

8



 

 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

08/07/10 
 

Common Administrative Processes Officer Reports 
(Dave Green) 

 Suggested report on progress of 
the project at the meeting on 18

th
 

November.  

 

08/07/10 
 
 

Financial Reporting  / Budget: 
- Monitoring the financial statements 
- How the authority performs against savings 
targets; 
- Review the impact on local residents where 
savings are made; 
- Impact of the Comprehensive Spending 
Review on the borough; 

Officer Reports 
(Ian Coleman) 

 Financial / Budget Monitoring 
reports will be included on each 
meeting agenda. 
 

 

08/07/10 
 

‘Total Place’: 
- What is the role for the concept of ‘Total 
Place’ in the borough?; 
- What is happening with partners to establish 
areas for cooperation, for example, how will 
DASS and NHS work together to streamline 
‘elderly’ care? 

Officer Reports 
(Carolyn Curr) 
 

 Report on the background to ‘Total 
Place and successor arrangements 
– Community Budgets’ provided at 
the meeting on 21

st
 September. 

Report to be produced for the 
meeting on 31

st
 January to include: 

- Examples of both successful and 
unsuccessful practice from 
elsewhere; 
- Further Government advice; 
- Progress on discussions with local 
partners regarding shared services, 
etc.. 

 

08/07/10 
 

Office Accommodation: 
- The EC Harris report was referred to the 
Council Excellence Committee by Cabinet (24 
June 2010);  
- Need to understand the Cabinet timetable; 
- What are the implications for the Council’s 
Data Centres?; 
- Future role for agile working 
 

Officer reports plus site 
visits.  
(Bill Norman / Ian 
Brand) 

 Special meeting of the Committee 
arranged for 24

th
 August 2010. 

Further report provided at the 
meeting on 21

st
 September. 

Further report requested for the 
meeting on 18/11/10.   

 

P
a
g
e
 3

9



 

 
Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

08/07/10 
 

Future of Cultural Services: 
- Where should Cultural Services fit in the 
organisation?; 
- How can the service be best managed?; 

Possible joint work with 
Sustainable 
Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 Suggested report at the meeting on 
31

st
 January 2011. 

As a report is due to be discussed 
at Cabinet on 23/09/10, the Council 
Excellence meeting of 21/09/10 
agreed to take this item no further.  

Close 

08/07/10 
 

Monitoring of items of expenditure exceeding 
£500: 
- How does the system operate? 
 

Officer report to a 
future meeting 
(Ian Coleman) 

 Issue initially raised by a member at 
the Committee meeting on 
08/07/10. 
Report on ‘Publication of 
Expenditure’ provided at the 
meeting on 21

st
 September.  

A further report, expected on 
31/01/11, was requested to explain 
the staffing implications of 
publishing the expenditure data. 

 

21/09/10 
 

Employee Forums – 
What issues do they cover? 
What are the participation levels? 
What is the cost of providing the Forums?  

Officer report 
(Carolyn Curr) 
 

 Issue initially raised by a member at 
the Committee meeting on 
21/09/10. 
Report planned for the meeting on 
18

th
 November. 

 

21/09/10 
 

Reaching Excellent Level of the Equality 
Framework for Local Government (EFLG) 

Officer report 
(Carolyn Curr) 
 

 Progress report presented to 
meeting on 21/09/10. Further 
report, expected 10/03/11, 
requested in six months time. 
Report to include the reasons for 
low levels of Black and Ethnic 
Minority individuals accessing 
mainstream services.   

 

21/09/10 
 

Income from Golf Courses, to include: 
Why is projected income not met on an 
annual basis? 
Is security of courses a determinant in loss of 
income?  

Officer report 
(Jim Lester) 

 Issue initially raised by a member at 
the Committee meeting on 
21/09/10. 
Report requested for meeting on 
18/11/10.  

 

P
a

g
e
 4

0



 

 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

21/09/10 
 

Measures to reduce the number of payments 
by cheque 

Officer report 
(Ian Coleman) 

 Issue initially raised by a member at 
the Committee meeting on 
21/09/10. 
Report planned for the meeting on 
18

th
 November. 

 

21/09/10 
 

Policy on mobile phone entitlement and 
operation of the system 

Officer report 
(Ian Coleman) 

 Issue initially raised by a member at 
the Committee meeting on 
21/09/10. 
Report planned for the meeting on 
18

th
 November. 

 

21/09/10 
 

Allowances paid to staff (on top of salary) Officer report 
(Bill Norman / Chris 
Hyams) 

 Issue initially raised by a member at 
the Committee meeting on 
21/09/10. 
Report planned for the meeting on 
18

th
 November. 

 

21/09/10 
 

‘Wirral’s Future – Be a part of it’ – 
Independent Task Forces  
 

Officer report 
 

 Issue initially raised by a member at 
the Committee meeting on 
21/09/10. 
Report planned for the meeting on 
28

th
 October. 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

1



 

 
REPORT 2 

SUGGESTIONS FOR ADDITIONS TO WORK PROGRAMME   
COUNCIL EXCELLENCE : 21/09/10  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Topic Description  Topic 
suggested by 

How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Completion Date 

    

Several additions to the Work Programme were agreed by members 
at the Council Excellence meeting held on 21/09/10. These items are 
listed above (on Report 1), where the ‘Date of New Item’ column is 
shown as 21/09/10. 
  

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

P
a

g
e
 4

2



 

REPORT 3  
PROPOSED OUTLINE MEETING SCHEDULE FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR  

COUNCIL EXCELLENCE : 2010 / 2011 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Topic Description  

  

08/07/10 
 
 
 

Financial Monitoring 
Housing Benefit / Council Tax Benefit Annual Report 
Customer Services Annual Report 
Treasury Management Annual Report  
Audit Commission Performance Management Review 
Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 
Freedom of Information requests (follow-up report from meeting held on 17

th
 March 2010) 

Forward Plan 
Office Accommodation 
Work Programme Update 
Forward Plan 
 

24/08/10 Office Accommodation (Special Meeting) 
 

21/09/10 
 
 

Update on Strategic Change Programme  
Financial Monitoring 
Revenues & Benefits 
Budget Projections 2011-15 
Treasury Management 
Customer Services Focus Group 
Publication of Expenditure 
Audit Commission Report - Managing Attendance 
Delivering efficiency and measuring and reporting Value for Money Gains in Local Services 
Q1 Performance Monitoring – Report concentrating on red / amber ‘exceptions’ plus a verbal update on the future 
plans for performance monitoring 
‘Total Place’ and successor arrangements – Community Budgets  
Office Accommodation / Rationalisation 
Reaching Excellent Level of the Equality Framework for Local Government (EFLG) – Quarter One 2010/11  
Work Programme Update 
Forward Plan 
Catering tenders 
Schools Risk Management 

P
a
g
e
 4

3



 

 

Meeting 
Date 

Topic Description  

  

28/10/10 
 
 

Special Meeting: 
Strategic Change Programme Board – Update on progress (Dave Green) 
‘Wirral’s Future – Be a part of it’ – Independent Task Forces   
 

18/11/10 
 
 
 

Financial Monitoring (Ian Coleman) 
Revenues and Benefits (Ian Coleman)   
Budget Projections 2011-15 (Ian Coleman) 
Treasury Management (Ian Coleman) 
Impact of the Comprehensive Spending Review – Initial View (Ian Coleman) 
Presentation – Operation Black Vote (Carolyn Curr) 
Q2 Performance Monitoring – Report concentrating on red / amber ‘exceptions’ (Carolyn Curr) 
Common Administrative Processes (Dave Green) 
Office Accommodation / Rationalisation (Bill Norman / Ian Brand) 
Golf Income (Jim Lester) 
Employee Forums (Carolyn Curr) 
Measures to reduce the number of payments by cheque (Ian Coleman)  
Policy on mobile phone entitlement and operation of the system (Ian Coleman)  
Allowances paid to staff (on top of salary) (Bill Norman / Chris Hyams) 
Work Programme Update 
Forward Plan 
 

31/01/11 
 
 

Financial Monitoring (Ian Coleman) 
Revenues and Benefits (Ian Coleman) 
Budget Projections 2011-15 (Ian Coleman) 
Treasury Management (Ian Coleman) 
Publication of Expenditure – Update on Staffing implications (Ian Coleman) 
Community Budgets (formerly ‘Total Place’) - Update (Carolyn Curr) 
Progress of Change Programme (Dave Green) 
Q3 Performance Monitoring – Report concentrating on red / amber ‘exceptions’ (Carolyn Curr) 
Future of Performance Management (Carolyn Curr)  
Work Programme Update 
Forward Plan 
 

P
a

g
e
 4

4



 

 
 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Topic Description  

  

16/03/10 Financial Monitoring(Ian Coleman) 
Revenues and Benefits (Ian Coleman) 
Budget Projections 2011-15 (Ian Coleman) 
Treasury Management (Ian Coleman) 
Reaching Excellent Level of the Equality Framework for Local Government (EFLG) (Carolyn Curr) 
Work Programme Update 
Forward Plan 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

5



 

REPORT 4 
PROGRESS REPORT ON IN-DEPTH PANEL REVIEWS 

COUNCIL EXCELLENCE : 18/11/10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Title of Review Members of Panel Progress to Date Date Due to  
report to 
Committee 

    

 
None at present 
 

   

 
 
 

   

P
a

g
e
 4

6



SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME 2010/11 

 
 

Title: Department: Comments/ Justification:/outcome 
7th June 2010: 
Review of the Impact of the Severe Weather 
in January 2010 
 
 
 
Highway & Engineering Services Contract – 
Annual Review 
 
 
 
Carbon Reduction Progress Update - NI 185 
(Council activity)  
 
 
2009/10 Quarter 4 Performance Report 
 
 

 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
Law, HR & Asset Management 

 
Progress report and formal presentation – 
item requested by Cabinet and O&S 
Committee – REPORT NOTED WITH 
CABINET RECOMMENDATION 7.6.10 
 
Progress report and formal presentation on 
the new strategic contract with Colas Ltd that 
commenced on 1st April 2009 – PROGRESS 
NOTED 7.6.10 
 
Progress report on delivering Corporate 
Priority 2.2:  - REPORT NOTED 7.6.10 
 
Regular report covering performance and 
financial issues – REPORT NOTED 7.6.10 

14th September 2010: 
United Utility - Operations 
 
 
 
Scottish Power – Street Lighting 
 
 
 
 
Gateway 5  
 
 
 
 

 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
 

 
REPRESENTATIVES ATTENDED OSC - 
DISCUSSION HELD AND IMPROVED 
LIASION ARRANGEMENTS NOTED  
 
REPRESENTATIVES ATTENDED OSC – 
DISCUSSION HELD OVER RESIDENT 
DISSATISFACTION OVER STREET 
LIGHTING – attendance requested Jan 11 
 
Officer report on the outcome of Gateway 5 
review – REPORT NOTED 14.9.10 – 
FURTHER REPORT REQUESTED JAN 11 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

7



 
Highway and Engineering Services  – Annual 
report/presentation 
 
Road Safety Progress Update – NI 47 & NI 48 
(All KSI and Child KSI) (including review of 
Road Safety Audit procedure) 
 
 
Carbon Reduction Progress Update – NI 186 
(Wirral-wide activity) 
 
 
Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy 
Review Update 
 
Beach Management 
 
 
Business Plan for Wirral’s Parks 
 
 
Physical Activity for Hard to Reach Groups 
 
 
2010/11 Quarter 1 Performance Report 

 
CE – Colas 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
Technical Services 
Law, HR & Asset Management 

 
MR NEILL THANKED FOR PRESENTATION 
 
Progress report on delivering Corporate 
Priority 2.4: Reduce the number of people 
killed or seriously injured in road accidents 
- DEFERRED 
 
 
2ND PROGRESS REPORT – 
PERFORMANCE NOTED  AND FUTURE 
PROJECT PROPOSALS ENDORSED 
 
Update on the review of the Merseyside 
JMWMS – REPORT NOTED 
 
Report requested by Chair –CTEE AGREED 
REPORT WITHDRAWN 
 
Business Plan linked with ongoing PACSPE 
Procurement Exercises - DEFERRED 
 
Review of the provision of physical activity for 
this group - DEFERRED 
 
Regular report covering performance and 
financial issues – REPORT NOTED 

17th November 2010: 
 
Local Environmental Quality Update – NI 195 
 
 
 
Arrowe Park Hospital Travel Plan 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Progress report on delivering Corporate 
Priority 2.3: Create exemplary levels of street 
cleanliness 
 
Annual review of the Hospital Travel Plan in 
accordance with Section 106 condition (could 
be delegated to Highways & Traffic 
Representations Panel with Committee 
approval) 
 

P
a

g
e
 4

8



Flood Working Group Progress Report 
 
 
Carbon Reduction Progress Update – NI 185 
(Council Activity) 
 
 
Arts & Museums Development Plan 
 
Food Safety and Nutrition 
 
 
Dog Fouling 
 
Doorstep Crime 
 
2010/11 Quarter 2 Performance Report 
 

Technical Services 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
Law, HR & Asset Management 
 
 
Law, HR & Asset Management 
 
Law, HR & Asset Management 
 
Technical Services 
Law, HR & Asset Management 

Progress report of the formal Working Group 
established by the O&S Committee 
 
6 monthly progress report on delivering 
Corporate Priority 2.2: Reducing the Council’s 
carbon footprint 
 
Development Plan for Arts and Museums 
 
Review of the work of Environmental Health 
and Trading Standards 
 
Review of Dog Fouling initiatives 
 
Progress in Tackling Doorstep Crime 
 
Regular report covering performance and 
financial issues 

20th January 2011: 
 
Waste Recycling/ Minimisation Update – NI 
191 & NI 192 
 
 
Streetscene Environment Services Contract – 
Fourth Annual Review 
 
 
Review of second phase Pavement/ Verge 
Parking Enforcement initiative 
 
 
 
 
Scottish Power 
 
 
 
Gateway 5 

 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
 
 
Technical Services/Scottish Power# 
 
 
 
Technical Services 

 
 
Progress report on delivering Corporate 
Priority 2.1: Sustain improved levels of 
recycling 
 
Progress report and formal presentation on 
the strategic contract with Biffa that 
commenced in August 2006 
 
Review of second phase of initiative as 
requested by O&S Committee (could be 
delegated to Highways & Traffic 
Representations Panel with Committee 
approval) 
 
Reps to attend OSC (See mins 14 Sept) – 
report on work schedules for council and 
Scottish Power. 
 
Further report request – (see mins Sept 10) 

P
a
g
e
 4

9



 
 

10th March 2011: 
 
Flood Working Group Progress Report 
 
 
Carbon Reduction Progress Update – NI 186 
(Wirral-wide activity) 
 
 
Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) 
 
Underage Sales 
 
 
Quarter 3 Performance Report 
 
 

 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
Law, HR & Asset Management 
 
 
Technical Services 
Law, HR & Asset Management 

 
 
Progress report of the formal Working Group 
established by the O&S Committee 
 
6 monthly Progress report on delivering 
Corporate Priority 2.2: Reducing Wirral’s 
carbon footprint 
 
CRC Initiative Progress Report 
 
Progress in the Control of illicit sales to Young 
People. 
 
Regular report covering performance and 
financial issues 
 

 

NB: The Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Committee is the designated committee to provide the statutory scrutiny of the 
Community Safety Partnership.  The scrutiny work is still to be identified and is the subject of consultation between the Scrutiny 
committee and the community Safety Partnership. 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 5

0



 

Updated Work Programme Scrutiny Programme Board  Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

BEGINNING OF THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010 /2011  

It was agreed at the Overview and Scrutiny Chairs meeting to adopt the following procedure to allow the committee members to monitor their work programme. 
It is felt that the work programme should be a ‘living’ document and as such is intended to act as a guide for the Committee throughout the year, while providing 
the degree of flexibility needed to respond to any emerging or pressing issues as they arise. Committee members, and particularly the Chair, should have a 
major role in owning and managing the work programme.  
 
The final item on the agenda for each Scrutiny Committee will be ‘Review of the Committee Work Programme’.   
 
It is suggested that there should be four short reports. I have attached the following reports: 

REPORT 1 - Lists all the issues the committee agreed to include in their Work Programme: 

This report lists all items that have been selected by the Committee for inclusion on the work programme for the current year. 

It also includes items, such as previous Panel Reviews, where recommendations have been made to Cabinet. It is important that the implementation of these 
recommendations is monitored. Otherwise there is no measure of the success of scrutiny. 

For each item on the work programme, the report gives a description, an indication of how the item will be dealt with, a where possible a relative timescale for 
the work and brief comments on progress.  

REPORT 2 - Suggestions for Additions to Work Programme 

The Work Programme for the Committee should be reviewed at each meeting. This will include members having the opportunity to ask for new Items to be 
added to the programme. This report will list any newly suggested items. Committee will then have the opportunity to agree (or not) for them to be added to the 
programme.  

REPORT 3  - Proposed Outline Meeting Schedule for the Municipal Year 

The report lists those items which are likely to be on the meeting agenda. This will give the opportunity for Committee members to take a greater lead in 
organising their work programme. 

REPORT 4  - Progress Report on In-Depth Panel Reviews 

This report will give a very brief update on progress / timescales for in-depth panel reviews which are in the ‘ownership’ of the Committee. 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 7

P
a
g
e
 5

1



Report 1 

MONITORING REPORT FOR THE SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD START OF MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010/2011 
(UPDATES IN RED) 

Date of item Topic Description How the topic will be dealt with Comments on Progress Complete 

 3RD JUNE The Director of Law, HR and Asset Management provided an update on the current status of the Scrutiny Programme Board’s Work Programme for 
the 2009/2010 municipal year and invited suggestions from Members regarding the work programme for 2010/2011. He outlined the functions of the 
Scrutiny Programme Board and indicated that the work programmes of the five themed overview and scrutiny committees would be presented to 
each meeting of the Board for progress to be reviewed.  

He set out guidance for the selection of topics for review and commented that an in-depth review should have the potential to make a difference and 
be carefully chosen with reference to objective criteria. He commented upon sources of ideas for topics for review and referred also to reasons for 
the rejection of suggested topics..  

3RD  JUNE It was agreed: That the impact on 
partnerships of any savings that may be 
required in relation to specific grants, form 
the basis of a scrutiny review as more 
information is known. 

PANEL REVIEW   

3rd JUNE Alcohol Scrutiny Review 

It was agreed: That the Alcohol Scrutiny 
Review remain as part of the work programme 
for the new municipal year. 

 

PANEL REVIEW   

3rd JUNE One Council’ Scrutiny Review 

Resolved – That no further work be 
undertaken in relation to the ‘One Council’ 
Scrutiny Review at the present time. 

 

PANEL REVIEW Further to minute 44 (4 March 2010), 
the Director of Law, HR and Asset 
Management provided an update 
upon progress of the ‘One Council’ 
Scrutiny Review. He outlined the 
objective of the review and appended 
to his report the scoping document 
previously approved by the Board. 
The Director sought the views of the 
Board as to whether the review 
should remain as part of the work 
programme for the new municipal 
year. 

 

P
a

g
e
 5

2



20th SEPT.,  

 
The Chair presented an updated Monitoring 
Report on the Committees Work Programme, 
in order to give Members the opportunity to 
review it and to ask for new items to be added.  

 

 

The Director of Law, HR and Asset 
Management reported upon the annual Good 
Scrutiny Awards, which had recently been 
presented by the Centre for Public Scrutiny 
(CfPS), and which provided examples of best 
practice in scrutiny achieved in some 
authorities. He provided an explanation of the 
categories in the awards and indicated that 
although the awards were national, five of this 
year’s winners (out of ten categories) were 
geographical neighbours of Wirral. 

Members referred to the substantial amount of 
scrutiny being undertaken in Wirral and 
expressed the view that the achievements in 
scrutiny should form the basis of a submission 
for the Good Scrutiny Awards 2011. 

The Democratic Services Manager referred to 
the significant work undertaken as part of the 
Alcohol Scrutiny Review and suggested that it 
could form the basis of a submission to the 
CfPS Good Scrutiny Awards 2011 (see minute 
24 ante). She also sought the views of 
Members as to additional topics to form the 
basis of further scrutiny reviews. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolved –  

That the officers be requested 
to present a report, 
highlighting examples of 
excellent scrutiny, to a future 
meeting of the Board, in time 
to prepare a submission for 
the 2011 CfPS Awards. 

Resolved – 

1 That additional topics for 
review be considered at 
the Overview and Scrutiny 
Workshop to be held on 5 
October 2010. 

 

2. That the Alcohol Scrutiny 
Review form the basis of a 
submission to the CfPS 
Good Scrutiny Awards 
2011. 

 

 

     

  
   

P
a
g
e
 5

3



Report 2 

SUGGESTIONS FOR ADDITIONS TO WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD START 
OF MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010/2011 

 

Topic Description Topic suggested by How the topic will be dealt with Estimated 
Completion 

Date 

    

  
  

  
  

  
  

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

P
a

g
e
 5

4



Report 3 

PROPOSED OUTLINE MEETING SCHEDULE FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD 
START OF MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010/2011 

 

Meeting Date Topic Description 

 §§§§  

  

 §§§§  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

P
a
g
e
 5

5



Report 4 

PROGRESS REPORT ON IN-DEPTH PANEL REVIEWS FOR SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD START OF 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010/2011 

 

Title of Review Members of Panel Progress to Date 
Date Due to  report 

back 

Alcohol Scrutiny Review Councillor Ann Bridson 

Councillor Chris Meaden 

Councillor Sue Taylor 

Councillor Dave Mitchell 

 

Further to minute 17 (14 September 2009) and minute 33 
(14 January 2010), members of the Alcohol Scrutiny 
Panel presented an update on progress for the Alcohol 
Scrutiny Review. The central focus of the review was the 
“access to alcohol by young people in Wirral” and the 
issues which would be focused upon were contained 
within a scoping document appended to the report. 
Evidence had been gathered from meetings with officers 
of Wirral NHS, Drug and Alcohol Action Team (DAAT), 
Children and Young People, Licensing, Trading 
Standards and Merseyside Police. The Panel members 
proposed to continue with further evidence gathering, in 
particular focusing on the education of children 
(regarding alcohol) and the investigation of progress of 
initiatives at statistical and geographical neighbours. 
Members of the Panel indicated that young people would 
also be interviewed during the course of the review and it 
was proposed that this would be achieved with input from 
the Youth Parliament and the Youth Outreach Team. 
 
 

(1) That the Alcohol Scrutiny Review 
remain as part of the work programme for 
the new municipal year. 

 (2) That with the continued input and 
support from Mr A Veitch (Scrutiny Officer 
aligned to the Liberal Democrat Group), the 
following Members be re-appointed to 
serve on the Alcohol Scrutiny Panel in 
2010/2011  

 

It was planned that the final 
report for the Alcohol 
Scrutiny Review would be 
completed by the current 
panel members in due course 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
This review is now coming 
to a close and a report is 
due to be produced shortly. 
They are waiting for data 
regarding alcohol-related 
hospital admissions’ 
including by age, gender & 
geographical breakdown of 
the patients. Also, 
comparative data with 
geographical and statistical 
neighbours.  
 

P
a

g
e
 5

6



‘One Council’ Scrutiny Review  Further to minute 44 (4 March 2010), the Director of Law, 
HR and Asset Management provided an update upon 
progress of the ‘One Council’ Scrutiny Review. He outlined 
the objective of the review and appended to his report the 
scoping document previously approved by the Board. The 
Director sought the views of the Board as to whether the 
review should remain as part of the work programme for 

the new municipal year.  

Resolved – That no further work be undertaken in 
relation to the ‘One Council’ Scrutiny Review at 
the present time. 

 

 

That the impact on partnerships of 
any savings that may be required 
in relation to specific grants, form 
the basis of a scrutiny review as 
more information is known. 

tba   

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

P
a
g
e
 5

7



P
a

g
e
 5

8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Scrutiny Workshop Update
	4 Scrutiny Training
	A Hard Nut to Crack? Making Overview and Scrutiny Work
	Scrutiny Solutions Development Programme

	6 Work Programmes of Overview and Scrutiny Committees
	SustainableCommunitiesWorkProgramme SEPT 10 (2)

	7 Review of Scrutiny Programme Board Work Programme

